Public Document Pack

Mid Devon District Council

Special Meeting of the Cabinet

Wednesday, 23 May 2018 at 10.00 am Exe Room, Phoenix House, Tiverton

Next ordinary meeting Thursday, 14 June 2018 at 2.15 pm

Those attending are advised that this meeting will be recorded

Membership

Cllr C J Eginton Leader and Environment

Cllr R J Chesterton Deputy Leader and Planning and Economic

Regeneration

Cllr P H D Hare-Scott Finance

Cllr C R Slade Community Well Being

Cllr Mrs M E Squires Working Environment and Support Services

Cllr R L Stanley Housing

AGENDA

Members are reminded of the need to make declarations of interest prior to any discussion which may take place

Apologies

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. Declarations of Interest under the Code of Conduct

Councillors are reminded of the requirement to declare any interest, including the type of interest, and reason for that interest, either at this stage of the meeting or as soon as they become aware of that interest.

3. Public Question Time

To receive any questions relating to items on the Agenda from members of the public and replies thereto.

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

Members to consider whether to approve the minutes as a correct record of the meeting held on 19 May 2018.

5. **Housing Infrastructure Fund** (Pages 9 - 16)

To consider a report of the Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration updating Members on the latest position with regard to the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) bid for Cullompton and to seek approval to pursue opportunities to use this Government investment on an amended transport intervention to bring forward housing development and address congestion and air quality problems in the Cullompton area and seek approval to fund related work.

Stephen Walford Chief Executive Tuesday, 15 May 2018

Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chairman. Any filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who may not wish to be filmed. As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the Member Services Officer in attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening.

Members of the public may also use other forms of social media to report on proceedings at this meeting.

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting and listen to discussion. Lift access the first floor of the building is available from the main ground floor entrance. Toilet facilities, with wheelchair access, are also available. There is time set aside at the beginning of the meeting to allow the public to ask questions.

An induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter. If you require any further information, or

If you would like a copy of the Agenda in another format (for example in large print) please contact Sally Gabriel on:

Tel: 01884 234229

E-Mail: sqabriel@middevon.gov.uk

Public Wi-Fi is available in all meeting rooms.

Agenda Item 4.

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of a MEETING of the CABINET held on 10 May 2018 at 2.15 pm

Present

Councillors C J Eginton (Leader)

R J Chesterton, P H D Hare-Scott, C R Slade, Mrs M E Squires and

R L Stanley

Also Present

Councillor(s) F W Letch, Mrs J Roach and F J Rosamond

Also Present

Officer(s): Stephen Walford (Chief Executive), Andrew Jarrett

(Director of Finance, Assets and Resources), Jill May (Director of Corporate Affairs and Business Transformation), Kathryn Tebbey (Group Manager for Legal Services and Monitoring Officer), Andrew Pritchard (Director of Operations), Jane Lewis (Communications and Engagement Manager), Tristan Peat (Forward Planning Team Leader) and Sally Gabriel (Member Services

Manager)

APOLOGIES

There were no apologies.

2. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no members of the public present.

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

4. CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY (00-00-22)

Arising from a report of the Health and Safety Officer, the Community Policy Development Group had recommended that the Cabinet note that the Health and Safety Policy was approved by the JNCC on 07 December 2017, following review by the Health and Safety Committee and Unison.

The Cabinet Member for the Working Environment and Support Services outlined the contents of the report stating that the policy was reviewed annually and that the Council was committed to ensuring high standards of health, safety and welfare of its officers and of the public. She highlighted the various responsibilities of officers (to reflect the updated structure) within the policy along with arrangements, risk assessments and the safe use of plant and equipment.

Consideration was given to the need for the policy to be sensible and workable.

RESOLVED that the recommendation of the Community Policy Development Group be noted.

(Proposed by Cllr Mrs M E Squires and seconded by Cllr C R Slade).

Note: *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

5. REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) - POLICY AND PROCEDURES (00-09-45)

Arising from a report of the Director of Corporate Affairs and Business Transformation, the Community Policy Development Group had recommended that:

- a) Cabinet be advised that the Council's existing RIPA Policy did not require updating or amending at the current time.
- b) Cabinet note that the Council had not used its powers under RIPA since March 2014.

The Cabinet Member for the Working Environment and Support Services outlined the contents of the report stating that although the policy was reviewed annually, no amendments had been made, she also informed the meeting that the Council had not used its powers under RIPA since 2014. She explained that the policy set out the purposes for which covert surveillance could be used.

Consideration was given to the overt surveillance that did take place with the use of CCTV cameras.

RESOLVED that the recommendations of the Community Policy Development Group be approved.

(Proposed by Cllr Mrs M E Squires and seconded by Cllr P H D Hare-Scott.).

Note: *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

6. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME (MID DEVON AND THE GREATER EXETER STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP) (00-17-44)

The Cabinet had before it a *report of the Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration requesting the Cabinet to approve a revised timetable (Local Development Scheme) for the preparation of the Mid Devon Local Plan Review and the Greater Exeter Strategic Plan.

The Cabinet Member for Planning and Economic Regeneration outlined the contents of the report stating that Local Planning Authorities were required to prepare and keep up to date a development plan for their area. It was important that the development plan was kept up to date to ensure that it reflected recent changes in the planning system, the Council's current corporate objectives and provided a sound basis for decision making. Therefore a project plan needed to be put in place to

ensure that the review was completed efficiently. The purpose of the report was to present a revised version of the LDS which took account of the adjournment of examination hearings for the Mid Devon Local Plan Review that was scheduled to commence in September 2017, and additional time required for the preparation of the Greater Exeter Strategic Plan to reach the Draft Plan Consultation Stage. He explained that work on the Greater Exeter Strategic Plan was in conjunction with 3 other local planning authorities and outlined the work that had taken place to date, the timetable for consultation, publication and proposed submissions and that the plan would require approval by each authority.

Consideration was given to:

- How the Greater Exeter Strategic Plan could supersede our own Local Plan
- The timetable for the Strategic Plan with the District elections in May 2019
- The timetable for the Local Plan Review which was now in the hands of the Inspector

RESOLVED that the new Local Development Scheme (LDS) which will have effect from 18th May 2018 be approved and published on the Council's website.

(Proposed by Cllr R J Chesterton and seconded by Cllr C R Slade).

Note: *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

7. KITCHEN SUPPLY CONTRACT 2018-2022 (00-31-27)

The Cabinet had before it a report* of the Director of Operations providing the outcome of the recent procurement process for the supply of Kitchens for the Modernisation of Council Homes 2018 – 2019 and Kitchen Supply Only Contract 2018- 2022 and confirmation of the intention to award the contract.

The Cabinet Member for Housing outlined the contents of the report explaining that the procurement procedure was a compliant direct award process via a kitchen materials supply framework. The Council had set out its requirements and these had been matched to companies within the framework, he added that only one company had met the preferred criteria.

Consideration was given to:

- The framework process
- How 8 companies could tender but that only one had met the criteria
- The number of kitchens to be provided and the replacement programme

RESOLVED that the Kitchen Supply Contract be awarded to **Supplier C** with an approximate forecast annual cost of:

2018 – 2019	£ 70,000
2019 – 2020	£126,000
2020 - 2021	£126,000
2021 – 2022	£126,000

(Proposed by Cllr R L Stanley and seconded by Cllr P H D Hare-Scott).

Note: *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

8. **SUPPLY OF BOILERS (00-44-44)**

The Cabinet had before it a report of the of the Director of Operations providing information on the outcome of the recent procurement exercise for the direct award, via a procurement framework, for the supply of Boilers for the capital boiler replacement programme and confirmation of the intention to award the contract.

The Cabinet Member for Housing outlined the contents of the report explaining that that the procurement procedure was a compliant direct award process via a boiler supply framework. The Council had set out its requirements and these were matched to companies within the framework.

Consideration was given as to whether the use of a framework process would be used for future replacement programmes

RESOLVED that the Boiler Supply Contract be awarded to **Supplier B** with an approximate forecast annual cost of £144,000.

(Proposed by Cllr R L Stanley and seconded by Cllr P H D Hare-Scott).

<u>Note</u>: *Report previously circulated, copy attached to minutes.

9. NOTIFICATION OF KEY DECISIONS (00-46-00)

The Cabinet had before it, and **NOTED**, its rolling plan * for May 2018 containing future key decisions.

Note: *Plan previously circulated, copy attached to minutes

10. ACCESS TO INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC (00-47-25)

Prior to considering the following item on the agenda, discussion took place as to whether it was necessary to pass the following resolution to exclude the press and public having reflected on Article 15 15.02(d) (a presumption in favour of openness) of the Constitution. The Cabinet decided that in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the information.

It was therefore:

RESOLVED that under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from the next item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 respectively of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, namely information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)

(Proposed by the Chairman)

11. THE FUTURE OF CREDITON OFFICE

The Cabinet had before it a report * of the Director of Finance, Assets and Resources, outlining options for the disposal and/or future management of the freehold premises at Market Street, Crediton.

The Cabinet Member for Housing outlined the contents of the report and a full discussion took place.

Returning to open session the Cabinet:

RESOLVED that: subject to contract, to dispose of the Crediton office building to Buyer 2 on the terms set out in paragraph 3.5 of the report, because:

- (a) The offer from Buyer 2 is the best offer put forward during the marketing period and it is a clear indication of the best consideration which can be reasonably obtained;
- (b) The offer from Buyer 2, although below the most recent unrestricted valuation, would not require vacant possession and thus save time and money in securing the transfer;
- (c) The Council realises a significant capital receipt and gives up future liability for an asset which is surplus to the Council's requirements.
- (d) The offer from Crediton Town Council would result in disposal of the office for a capital receipt which was less than 50% of the restricted value.

(Proposed by Cllr R L Stanley and seconded by Cllr P H D Hare-Scott)

Note: *Report previously circulated.

(The meeting ended at 3.35 pm)

CHAIRMAN



CABINET 23RD MAY 2018

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING, ECONOMY AND REGENERATION

BID SUBMISSIONS TO THE HOUSING INFRASTRUCTURE FUND.

Cabinet Member Cllr Richard Chesterton

Responsible Officer Mrs Jenny Clifford, Head of Planning, Economy and

Regeneration

Reason for Report: To update members on the latest position with regard to the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) bid for Cullompton and to seek approval to pursue opportunities to use this Government investment on an amended transport intervention to bring forward housing development and address congestion and air quality problems in the Cullompton area and seek approval to fund related work.

RECOMMENDATION: That Cabinet agree to:

- Grant delegated authority to the Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration to pursue further discussions over Housing Infrastructure Fund Marginal Viability (HIF MV) with Homes England on the basis of an amended highway intervention at Cullompton to deliver the town centre relief road;
- 2. Approve a budget of £100,000 to progress development of a relief road scheme and grant delegated authority to the Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning and Regeneration to commission associated work up to this value;
- 3. In the event that HIF funding from Homes England is confirmed, grant delegated authority to the Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration and Director of Finance, Assets and Resources (Section 151 Officer), in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning and Regeneration, to approve a further budget of up to £300,000 to support pre-application work which would then be reimbursed through the HIF fund.

Relationship to Corporate Plan: Resolving road capacity and air quality issues within the town will enable development identified in the Local Plan to come forward and make a valuable contribution to delivering the priorities of the Corporate Plan 2016 to 2020; Economy, Homes, Community and Environment.

Financial Implications: Delivery of key highway infrastructure improvements in Cullompton would play a pivotal role in bringing forward the corporate aspirations to facilitate growth within the district which in turn will help boost the economy. Authority to pursue an evolving alternative intervention in the form of a relief road will require up front funding of an initial £100,000 together with a further budget of up to £300,000 to support pre-application work which would then be reimbursed through the HIF fund. Authority for the £300,000 is only sought in the event of confirmed approval of the HIF funding from Homes England for the eligibility of reimbursement of this spend.

Legal Implications: None other than the pursuance of section 106 developer contributions through legal agreements which is a standard requirement and will be sought on a site by site basis irrespective of whether this funding is forthcoming. The Council will need to enter into a funding agreement with MHCLG which would be considered by Legal Services prior to signing.

Risk Assessment: Further work on the initially proposed intervention on Junction 28 together with discussions with Devon County Council and Homes England lead us now to believe that the scheme as initially submitted under the HIF MV fund is not deliverable and will not achieve the desired outcomes. On this basis your officers do not consider that as originally submitted the scheme would pass the Homes England due diligence process with the result that the funding would not be awarded. The further transport modelling work that has taken place since the submission of the HIF bid confirms that delivery of a relief road at Cullompton would achieve the same beneficial transport outcomes as the original scheme and will also provide other positive benefits such as removal/ reduction of traffic movements through the town centre.

There is also a risk in pursuing a 'relief road' intervention as the proposal will still need to meet the HIF scheme criteria and deliverables and be subject to further assessments by Homes England. In order to meet fund timescales work streams and expenditure would need to commence in advance of likely timescales for the Homes England final decision. Any spend with regard to the initial £100,000 would therefore be at risk should Homes England not agree to support this intervention.

Equalities: No implications anticipated.

- 1.0 Background: Housing Infrastructure Fund.
- 1.1 In July 2017 the Government launched its £2.3 billion Housing Infrastructure Fund to finance infrastructure to unlock housing delivery. This funding is being awarded on a highly competitive basis. The Government has made this fund available to:
 - Deliver new physical infrastructure to support new and existing communities;
 - Make more land available for housing in high demand areas, resulting in new additional homes that otherwise would not have been built;
 - Support ambitious local authorities who want to step up their plans for growth and make a meaningful difference to overall housing supply; and
 - Enable local authorities to recycle the funding for other infrastructure schemes, achieving more and delivering new homes in the future.
- 1.2 The government fund consists of two separate funding streams described as follows:
 - Marginal Viability Funding: This will be used to provide the final, or missing, piece of infrastructure funding in order to get existing sites unblocked quickly or new sites allocated. The Government expects the infrastructure to be built soon after schemes have been awarded funding and for the homes to follow at pace. The Marginal Viability Fund (MVF) is eligible for District

Councils and Unitary Councils with the Government prospectus indicating a cap of £10 million.

- Forward Funding: This funding will be used for a small number of strategic and high-impact infrastructure schemes. This fund is not available to lower tier authorities such as Mid Devon. Forward Funding is capped at £250 million.
- 1.3 A report was taken to Cabinet on 31st August 2017 setting out the basis for HIF and the intentions of this Council over submitting such bids. The Government made it clear that "bidders will need to demonstrate that **the schemes cannot happen without the financial support of this Fund** but would still offer a net benefit to society". Bids also needed to demonstrate that there is evidence of a demonstrable market failure and that developers or others, are not able to pay for the infrastructure themselves.
- 1.4 MHCLG specified that local authorities need to make it clear in their bids that:
 - "• the local authority must have an adopted up-to-date plan (either a development plan or spatial development strategy) or a plan that has been submitted for examination; or
 - bidders need to demonstrate that the funding will unlock the release of otherwise undeliverable land, which will speed up getting the plan in place."
- 1.5 MHCLG is also asks local authorities pursuing HIF funding to demonstrate that their infrastructure proposals have support locally with evidence of a strong local commitment to delivery, including between different tiers of local government and with delivery partners and providers; the involvement of local communities and MPs; and engagement with Local Enterprise Partnerships.
- 1.6 The Fund is available up to 31 March 2021 with MHCLG prioritising announcements for strong schemes that can start spending straight away. Bids have been assessed by use of the following three criteria:
 - Value for money

Schemes funded will need to provide a greater total net benefit than cost. Bids will need to provide a Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) which quantifies the benefits from homes being built, and compares these to the costs to Government. In calculating the BCR, MHCLG will take into account the total amount of funding being provided by Central Government. This is to ensure that there is no double counting. This does not include any funding put in by local government or by Local Enterprise Partnerships.

- Strategic approach to delivering housing growth
 MHCLG wish to fund schemes that take a strategic approach, with strong local leadership and joint working to achieve higher levels of housing growth in the local area, in line with price signals, and supported by clear evidence.
- The scheme and homes can be delivered

Bids are required to set out their delivery plans for both the infrastructure and the subsequent housing. This needs to include:

- a clear plan to deliver the infrastructure;
- a clear link between the provision of the infrastructure and the delivery of the homes; and
- reference to all the key delivery partners which are working together effectively.

Bids will need to set out key milestones, project plan, and any levers or contractual arrangements with key delivery partners or those operating in the local housing market. Bids will also need to be supported by the Highways Authority. Consideration will also be given to factors such as the progress made to date, the status of planning permissions, the strength of active commitment from key partners and delivery bodies, the project management and governance approach and the understanding of key delivery risks and their mitigations.

1.7 Marginal Viability bids needed to be submitted by 28 September 2017.

2.0 MDDC bids.

2.1 In accordance with details within the Cabinet report of 31st August 2017, Mid Devon District Council submitted two marginal viability HIF bids in relation to two schemes for highways infrastructure which can unlock development sites identified within both our adopted Local Plan and the emerging Local Plan Review. These were as follows:

2.2 Junction 28 of the M5 Motorway, Cullompton:

A scheme of improvements to increase the junction's capacity through the creation of an additional lane on the bridge over the M5 to provide two lanes in each direction, the construction of a new footbridges and full signalisation of the motorway junction. Bid amount: £10 million.

2.3 Northern element of A361 junction east of Tiverton:

A funding package has been secured to deliver the southern left-in left-off elements (phase 1) of the A361 junction east of Tiverton to facilitate deliver of the Eastern Urban Extension and construction work is well underway. However in order to enable Area B to come forward the phase 2 northern elements are also required. A HIF bid was made for phase 2 covering the bridge across the A361, the north side slips and associated landscaping.

2.4 Where the same local authority submitted more than one bid for funding there was a requirement that the bids be ranked according to priority. Cabinet resolved to prioritise the bid relating to improvements to Junction 28 of the M5 Motorway.

3.0 MDDC bid status.

3.1 Early in 2018 the Government announced a list of successful schemes under the HIF Marginal Viability Fund. Both the Mid Devon schemes (£10 million Cullompton M5 junction 28 improvements and £8.2 million Tiverton Eastern

Extension A361 junction phase 2) were included in the list of successful projects. Contact was subsequently made by Homes England indicating that this initial indication of success was still subject to a process of due diligence that would focus further assessment around value for money (cost/benefit) and delivery. Further information requests for both schemes have now been received that seek to understand the viability position of the housing sites that the infrastructure will unlock together with more detail on timescale, cash flow and delivery of the highway proposals themselves. Expectation is that this further process of engagement and assessment by Homes England will be completed within the next few months at which time a final decision over whether to award the funding will be made. Homes England wishes to enter into contracts with successful Councils in 2018 allowing for initial tranches of funding to be drawn down.

- 3.2 Since January 2018, this Council has been continuing to discuss the HIF proposals with a range of interested parties including Highways England and Devon County Council and to explore both schemes in more detail in order to engage with Homes England over their due diligence process. At present this due diligence process is still underway.
- 3.3 The rest of this report concentrates upon the Cullompton HIF proposal in order to update Members and make further recommendations regarding this bid.
- 4.0 Evolution of Cullompton HIF scheme intervention.
- 4.1 The HIF bid as submitted.
- More detailed transport analysis and further discussions have taken place with Devon County Council officers and Highways England over the HIF scheme proposal for Cullompton. A number of issues have arisen. The highway authorities referred to above now consider that the Junction 28 improvements as originally applied for under the fund will not achieve the benefits to traffic flows and junction operation initially expected and furthermore they have expressed strong concern over the ability to construct the scheme. As a result neither Devon County Council nor Highways England is content with taking responsibility for its delivery. It is also recognised that implementation of Junction 28 improvements in the manner initially proposed would cause major disruption and adverse effect on traffic movements during their construction. It is therefore concluded by the highway authorities that the scheme of works at the junction as submitted under the HIF scheme is both undeliverable and would not represent value for money. Consequently in light of these further discussions and emerging technical work, your officers conclude that the scheme as currently presented would not now satisfy Homes England and would not be funded.

4.2 Proposed bid revisions.

4.2.1 Officers have sought to identify whether there are any opportunities to evolve or revise proposals through the HIF process in order to achieve the same intended outcomes, unlock the same number of homes as required through the fund and deliver value for the public purse. Through these discussions an

amended course of action has evolved which the Highway Authority considers to perform better than the initially proposed Junction 28 improvements in transport terms and would also bring about wider benefits. It is recommended that the HIF proposal now focuses on the delivery of a Cullompton relief road. This is also seen as being preferable by Highways England and would not cause the same level of disruption to the operation of the motorway junction during construction as the original proposal.

- 4.2.2 The delivery of a relief road for Cullompton has been a long term objective, receiving policy support within both the adopted and submitted Local Plans. It would also enable the reduction of traffic flows through the town centre resulting in air quality and town centre amenity benefits. This aligns with the Council's separate Townscape Heritage Initiative (THI) submission for Cullompton town centre. The THI submission is still under consideration by the Heritage Lottery Board. The Council is also proposing to masterplan Cullompton town centre.
- 4.2.3 The precise alignment of a relief road is yet to be determined, but options generation is well advanced. Public consultation will take place in accordance with the requirements of policy before planning application submission. There is a requirement of the HIF process that money is spent and schemes delivered by 2020/21.
- 4.2.4 It is known that significant highway improvements will be required to serve the proposed garden village to the east of junction 28. A relief road could form the first part of such improvements, thereby also contributing to longer term growth and delivery aspirations as set out in the Local Plan Review and garden village expression of interest.
- 4.2.5 Members need to be aware that amending the Cullompton HIF scheme to focus on the delivery of a relief road is not without risk. The deliverability of the scheme, cost / benefit and timescale requirements for spend and scheme completion as required by Homes England will need to be proven in order for the award of funding (£10 million) to be ultimately made. Officers anticipate further liaison with stakeholders and interested parties, detailed programme planning and refinement over the following months.
- 4.2.6 Further work on project planning will need to respond to the tightness of the timescale for scheme delivery. Your officers expect this to require some work to be financed in advance of final confirmation of the bid outcome from Homes England. A budget of £100,000 for this work will be needed and would therefore be at risk should Homes England not agree to support this intervention. However even if this HIF opportunity not presented itself it is work that would still be needed to progress the delivery of a relief road for Cullompton.
- 4.2.7 In order to work up a planning application for the road together with associated supporting information, a further budget of £300,000 will be required. This would then be reimbursed through the HIF fund. Authority for the £300,000 is only sought in the event of Homes England confirming approval of the HIF funding and for the eligibility of this spend to be reimbursed through any such funding award.

5.0 Conclusions.

Your officers therefore consider that there is a strong case for the proposition to Homes England under HIF to be amended in terms of the nature of the highway intervention at Cullompton. It is now proposed to promote the delivery of a relief road rather than the original scheme at the motorway junction, the latter now being understood to be undeliverable. This is considered to represent the greatest opportunity in terms of cost /benefit, delivery of new homes and ultimately for a successful HIF outcome, but is not without risk. At this stage the outcome of further engagement with Homes England over an amended scheme is uncertain. Officers will continue to work on the scheme in order to meet fund requirements and reduce this risk. Additional benefits would also arise from the delivery of a relief road in terms of reduction /removal of traffic from the town centre, air quality, townscape, quality of life, vitality and viability of the town centre. It would also align with the Council's longer term aspirations for growth within the Cullompton area.

Contact for any more information	Adrian Welsh, Group Manager Growth Economy and Delivery 01884 234344 awelsh@middevon.gov.uk Jenny Clifford, Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration 01884 234346 jclifford@middevon.gov.uk
Background Papers	Cabinet November and December 2014; Council January 2015; Council 27 th April 2016; Cabinet 15 th September 2016; Council 22 nd September 2016; Cabinet 21 st November 2016 Council 1 st December 2016 Cabinet 31 st August 2017 MHCLG https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/housing-infrastructure-fund
File Reference	
Circulation of the Report	Councillor Richard Chesterton, Cabinet Member for Planning and Regeneration

